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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Offtec Holding Group (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) as at 31 December 2023, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

What we have audited
The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the consolidated statement of income for the year then ended.

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) (including the International

Independence Standards). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers “Jordan” Jabal Amman, Third circle — 14 Hazza' Al-Majali Street P.O. Box 5175, Amman 11183 Jordan
T: (+962) 6 5001300, F: (+962) 6 4610880, www.pwc.com/middle-east
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

To THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Our audit approach

Overview

Key audit matter Goodwill impairment testing

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where
management made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates
that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all
of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among
other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the
Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
To THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How we responded to key audit matter

1. Goodwill impairment testing

As on the date of the consolidated financial
statements and as it appears in the consolidated
statement of financial position and Note (6) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has a
goodwill  balance resulting from  previous
acquisitions of JD 6,792,258 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: JD 12,499,683).

o At each reporting date, the Group performs an
impairment assessment for goodwill, in
accordance with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard No. 36, to
determine whether the carrying amount of the
goodwill can be recovered.

e The Group has performed an impairment
review of goodwill on the appropriate cash
generating units using the value in use model.

¢ In determining the value in use, management
made various assumptions, including estimates
of sales volumes, future growth rate and
discount rates.

We have focused this matter due to the materiality
of goodwill and due to the significant management
judgments and assumptions involved in
determining the recoverable amount.

The assessment for the year resulted in an
impairment loss with an amount of JD 5,707,425.

(See Note (6) to the consolidated financial

statements).

We have reviewed the impairment assessment
performed by management by performing the
following procedures:

e We reviewed and evaluated the future
business plan prepared by management
and the appropriateness of the assumptions
used such as growth rates and the discount
rate (WACC).

o We evaluated management assumptions in
determining the cash generating units.

o We tested the accuracy and completeness
of the information used by management in
the impairment test model.

¢ We sought the help of our experts to assess
the reasonableness of the basic
assumptions used by the management in
impairment testing and recalculation of the
recoverable amount.

e We evaluated the accuracy and
completeness of the notes included in the
consolidated  financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard No. 36
“Impairment of Non-Financial Assets”.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
To THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’
annual report, (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon), which we expect to obtain after the date of our audit report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information not yet received, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the Group to cease its operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s consolidated financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
To THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of the Group’s internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. We are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
To THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, we
have taken steps to avoid the threats or implemented safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless laws or
regulations preclude public disclosure about the matters, or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matters should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such disclosure.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
The Group maintains proper accounting records which are consistent, in all material aspects, with the

accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend the General Assembly to approve
them.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers “Jordan”
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31 March 2024



OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

31 December

31 December

Note 2023 2022
JD JD
Assets
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 5 1,202,420 751,215
Intangible assets 6 6,792,258 12,499,683
Right of use of leased assets 7 778,622 910,859
Investment properties 8 945,423 945,423
Deferred tax assets 22 286,541 230,105
Non-current portion of net investment
in finance contracts at amortised cost 9 1,093,493 1,126,950
11,098,757 16,464,235
Current assets
Current portion of net investment
in finance contracts at amortised cost 9 12,261,089 8,907,191
Inventory 10 6,303,227 6,751,284
Trade receivables 1M 7,404,057 7,399,114
Other debit balances 12 2,219,338 1,812,755
Cash and cash equivalents 13 3,034,187 1,539,503
31,221,898 26,409,847
Total assets 42,320,655 42,874,082
Shareholder’s Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity
Authorised, subscribed and paid in capital 15 34,850,000 34,850,000
Reverse acquisition reserve 14 (18,627,185) (18,627,185)
Statutory reserve 15 1,767,813 1,767,813
Foreign currency translation 95,684 86,160
(Accumulated losses) retained earnings (3,610,272) 1,283,502
Net shareholders’ equity 14,476,040 19,360,290
Non-controlling interest 16 834,478 672,917
Net equity 15,310,518 20,033,207
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provision for end of service 17 1,295,227 1,140,346
Long-term loans 19 1,094,917 1,024,666
Lease liabilities 7 483,122 594,427
2,873,266 2,759,439
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts 18 3,103,652 3,404,561
Short term loans 19 8,734,316 7,134,760
Lease liabilities 7 292,335 302,454
Trade payables 20 4,037,418 3,763,666
Other credit balances 21 7,202,763 4,907,341
Income tax provision 22 766,387 568,654
24,136,871 20,081,436
Total liabilities 27,010,137 22,840,875
Total net equity and liabilities 42,320,655 42,874,082

Chairman of Board of Directors

General Manager

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements
7



OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Note 2023 2022
JD JD

Revenue from contracts with customers 30,861,175 27,600,218
Revenue from finance contracts 6,753,734 5,171,022
Total revenues 26 37,614,909 32,771,240
Cost of revenue 23 (25,054,207) (22,354,526)
Gross profit 12,560,702 10,416,714
Administrative expenses 24 (5,946,073) (5,738,587)
Expected credit losses 9& 11 (1,710,925) (973,209)
Goodwill impairment 6 (5,707,425) -
Other income, net 115,384 153,233
Operating (loss) profit (688,337) 3,858,151
Finance costs 28 (1,887,077) (1,333,274)
(Loss) profit for the year before tax (2,575,414) 2,524,877
Income tax 22 (851,969) (706,919)
Net (loss) profit for the year from
continued operations (3,427,383) 1,817,958
Net income for the year from

discontinued operations 30 - 32,223
(Loss) profit for the year (3,427,383) 1,850,181
(Loss) Profit for the year attributable to:
Shareholders (3,674,024) 1,704,198
Non-controlling interest 246,641 145,983

(3,427,383) 1,850,181

Earnings per share:

Earnings per share from the net (loss) profit
for the year attributable to the Company's
shareholders Fils / JD Fils / JD
Basic and diluted 31 (0.105) 0.044
Earnings per share from the (loss) profit for
the year from continued operations
attributable to the Company's shareholders Fils / JD Fils / JD
Basic and diluted 31 (0.105) 0.043
Earnings per share from the profit for the
year from discontinued operations
attributable to the Company's shareholders Fils / JD Fils / JD
Basic and diluted 31 - 0.001

Chairman of Board of Directors

General Manager

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Note 2023 2022
JD JD

Net (loss) profit for the year (3,427,383) 1,850,181
Add: other comprehensive income items
Items that can be subsequently transferred
to the income statement:
Foreign currency translation 9,524 44 218
Total comprehensive (loss) income for
the year (3,417,859) 1,894,399
Total comprehensive (loss) income
refers to:
Shareholders (3,664,500) 1,748,416
Non-controlling interest 16 246,641 145,983

(3,417,859) 1,894,399

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements



OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023

Balance as at 1 January

Net loss for the year

Comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Dividends (Note 15)

Dividends of non-controlling interest (Note 16-1)
Balance as at 31 December

2022

Balance as at 1 January

Net profit for the year
Comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Amortization of accumulated losses from the share capital
(Note 15)

Capital reduction (Note 15)

Effect of acquisition of non-controlling interest (Note 16- 2)
Disposal of non-controlling interest in the Egyptian Company
for Loyalty and Rewards (Note 30)

Dividends of non-controlling interest (Note 16-1)
Transfer to statutory reserve
Balance as at 31 December

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Authorised, (Accumulated

subscribed Reverse Foreign losses) Net Non-

and paid in acquisition Statutory currency retained shareholders' controlling

capital reserve reserve translation earnings equity interests  Net equity

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

34,850,000 (18,627,185) 1,767,813 86,160 1,283,502 19,360,290 672,917 20,033,207
- - - - (3,674,024) (3,674,024) 246,641 (3,427,383)
- - - 9,524 - 9,524 - 9,524
- - - 9,524  (3,674,024) (3,664,500) 246,641 (3,417,859)
- - - - (1,219,750)  (1,219,750) - (1,219,750)
- - - - - - (85,080) (85,080)

34,850,000 (18,627,185) 1,767,813 95,684 (3,610,272) 14,476,040 834,478 15,310,518

39,569,500 (18,627,185) 1,515,325 41,942 (3,705,760) 18,793,822 374,279 19,168,101
- - - - 1,704,198 1,704,198 145,983 1,850,181
- - - 44,218 - 44,218 - 44,218
- - - 44,218 1,704,198 1,748,416 145,983 1,894,399

(3,705,760) - - - 3,705,760 - - -

(1,013,740) - - - - (1,013,740) - (1,013,740)
- - - - (168,208) (168,208) 168,208 -
- - - - - - 12,807 12,807
- - - - - - (28,360) (28,360)
- - _ 252,488 - (252,488) - - :

34,850,000 (18,627,185) 1,767,813 86,160 1,283,502 19,360,290 672,917 20,033,207
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Operating activities

Loss (profit) for the year before income tax from continued

operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Adjustments for:
Depreciations
Finance costs
Amortization of right of use assets
Provision for expected credit losses
Reversal of provision for slow-moving inventories
Provision for end of service
Goodwill impairment
Changes in working capital items:
Net investment in finance contracts at amortised cost
Inventory
Trade receivables
Other debit balances
Trade payables
Other credit balances

Cash flows generated from (used in) operating activities

before end of service indemnity and income tax paid
End of service indemnity paid
Income tax paid
Net cash flows generated from (used in) operating
activities

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Prepayment for right of use assets

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Granted loans

Repayment of loans

(Repayment) granted of bank overdrafts
Lease liabilities paid

Finance costs paid

Dividends of non-controlling interest
Dividends paid

Repayment of share capital surplus to the shareholders
Disposal of non-controlling interest

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Foreign currency translation differences

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Non-cash transactions:
Additions of right of use assets/ Lease liabilities
Amortization of accumulated losses from paid-up capital

Note 2023 2022
JD JD

(2,575,414) 2,524,877

30 - 32,223
5 415,968 345,423
28 1,887,077 1,333,332
7 369,980 319,095
9& 11 1,710,925 973,209
10 (62,955) (175,317)
17 159,368 107,878
6 5,707,425 -
(4,785,984)  (3,158,125)
511,012 (2,201,745)
(250,325)  (1,836,274)
(406,583) (547,948)

273,752 900,274

2,291,687 863,174
5,245,933 (519,924)
17 (4,487) (5,597)
22 (710,673) (436,652)
4,530,773 (962,173)
5 (886,325) (383,326)
19,152 70,754

(15,667) -
(882,840) (312,572)

14,825,742 9,304,716
(13,155,934)  (7,456,513)

(300,909) 538,038
(343,500) (322,890)

28 (1,887,077)  (1,333,332)
16 (85,080) (28,360)
(1,216,015) -

- (946,065)

16 - 12,807
(2,162,773) (231,599)

9,524 44,218
1,494,684 (1,462,126)

13 1,539,503 3,001,629
13 3,034,187 1,539,503
7 222,076 123,113
15 - 3,705,760

The accompanying notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

(1) GENERAL INFORMATION

OFFTEC Holding Group is a public shareholding company limited and registered in the public
shareholding companies registry on 7 December 2004 under No. 355 at the Companies
Controller at the Ministry of Industry and Trade.

The Company's authorised, subscribed and paid in capitalis JD 34,850,000 as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022, divided into 34,850,000 shares, each with a nominal value of
one dinar.

The Company is listed on the Amman Stock Exchange.

The Company's main objectives are as follows:

- Managing the subsidiaries of the company or participating in the management of other
companies in which it owns shares.

- Investing its money in shares, bonds and securities.

- Providing loans, guarantees and financing to its subsidiaries.

- Owning patents.

- Owning trademarks.

The Group's head office is located in Amman - Jabal Amman - Third Circle.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2024.

(2) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied by the Group's management in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with the IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) interpretations applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS Accounting Standards.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The Jordanian Dinar is the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements and is the Group's functional currency.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS
Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its significant judgement in the process of applying
the accounting policies of the Group. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note (4).
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(A) New and amended standards and interpretations adopted by the Group in the
financial year beginning January 2023:

Key requirements Effect date *

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” - IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 | 1 January
as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. It requires a current | 2023
measurement model where estimates are remeasured in each
reporting period. Contracts are measured using the building blocks
of:

« discounted probability-weighted cash flows

» an explicit risk adjustment, and * a contractual service margin
(CSM) representing the unearned profit of the contract which is
recognised as revenue over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice between recognising changes in
discount rates either in the statement of profit or loss or directly in
other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how
insurers account for their financial assets under IFRS 9.

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for
the liability for the remaining coverage for eligible groups of
insurance contracts, which are often written by non-life insurers.

Targeted amendments made in July 2020 aimed to ease the
implementation of the standard by reducing implementation costs
and making it easier for entities to explain the results from applying
IFRS 17 to investors and others. The amendments also deferred the
application date of IFRS 17 to 1 January 2023.

Further amendments made in December 2021 added a transition
option that permits an entity to apply an optional classification
overlay in the comparative period(s) presented on initial application
of IFRS 17.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and | 1 January
IFRS Practice Statement 2: 2023

The IASB amended IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to
require entities to disclose their material rather than their significant
accounting policies.

The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy
information’ (being information that, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements, can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements) and explain how to identify when accounting
policy information is material. They further clarify that immaterial
accounting policy information does not need to be disclosed. If it is
disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting information. To
support this amendment, the IASB also amended IFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements to provide guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures”.
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

Key requirements Effect date *
Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8: 1 January
2023

The amendment to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors clarifies how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.
The distinction is important, because changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively to future transactions and other future
events, whereas changes in accounting policies are generally applied
retrospectively to past transactions and other past events as well as
the current period.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction — Amendments to IAS 12:

The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes require companies to
recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give
rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences, | 1 January
and will require the recognition of additional deferred tax assets and | 2023

liabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions that occur on or
after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In
addition, entities should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent
that it is probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period for all deductible
and taxable temporary differences associated with:

* right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and

+ decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the
corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the related
assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised
in the opening balance of retained earnings, or another component of
equity, as appropriate.

IAS 12 did not previously address how to account for the tax effects of
on balance sheet leases and similar transactions and various
approaches were considered acceptable. Some entities may have
already accounted for such transactions consistent with the new
requirements. These entities will not be affected by the amendments.

OECD Pillar Two Rules: 1 January
2023

In December 2021, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (OECD) released the Pillar Two model rules (the
Global AntiBase Erosion Proposal, or ‘GloBE’) to reform international
corporate taxation. Large multinational enterprises within the scope
of the rules are required to calculate their GIoBE effective tax rate for
each jurisdiction where they operate. They will be liable to pay a top-
up tax for the difference between their GIoBE effective tax rate per
jurisdiction and the 15% minimum rate.

In May 2023, the IASB made narrow-scope amendments to IAS 12
which provide a temporary relief from the requirement to recognise
and disclose deferred taxes arising from enacted or substantively
enacted tax law that implements the Pillar Two model rules, including
tax law that implements qualified domestic minimum top-up taxes
described in those rules.

The amendments also require affected companies to disclose:

« the fact that they have applied the exception to recognising and
disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related
to Pillar Two income taxes
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

Key requirements Effect date *

« their current tax expense (if any) related to the Pillar Two income
taxes, and ¢ during the period between the legislation being enacted
or substantially enacted and the legislation becoming effective,
known or reasonably estimable information that would help users of
financial statements to understand an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes arising from that legislation. If this information is not
known or reasonably estimable, entities are instead required to
disclose a statement to that effect and information about their
progress in assessing the exposure.

** The amendments must be applied immediately, subject to any local
endorsement process, and retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
However, the disclosures about the known or reasonably estimable
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes are only required for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and do not
need to be made in interim financial reports for interim periods ending
on or before 31 December 2023.

The implementation of the above standards did not have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

b. The Group has not yet applied the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Key requirements Effect
date *

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - |1

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants — | January

Amendments to IAS 1 - Amendments made to IAS 1 Presentation of | 2024
Financial Statements in 2020 and 2022 clarified that liabilities are
classified as either current or noncurrent, depending on the rights that
exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by
the entity’s expectations or events after the reporting date (e.g. the
receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). Covenants of loan
arrangements will not affect classification of a liability as current or non-
current at the reporting date if the entity must only comply with the
covenants after the reporting date. However, if the entity must comply
with a covenant either before or at the reporting date, this will affect the
classification as current or non-current even if the covenant is only
tested for compliance after the reporting date. The amendments require
disclosures if an entity classifies a liability as noncurrent and that liability
is subject to covenants that the entity must comply with within 12 months
of the reporting date. The disclosures include: ¢ the carrying amount of
the liability + information about the covenants, and + facts and
circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have difficulty
complying with the covenants. The amendments also clarify what IAS 1
means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. Terms of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instrument can only be ignored for
the purpose of classifying the liability as current or non-current if the
entity classifies the option as an equity instrument. However, conversion
options that are classified as a liability must be considered when
determining the current/non-current classification of a convertible note.

The amendments must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the
normal requirements in IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. Special transitional rules apply if an
entity had early adopted the 2020 amendments regarding the
classification of liabilities as current or non-current.
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

Key requirements Effect
date *

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to IFRS 16: 1
January

In September 2022, the IASB finalised narrow-scope amendments to the | 2024
requirements for sale and leaseback transactions in IFRS 16 Leases
which explain how an entity accounts for a sale and leaseback after the
date of the transaction.

The amendments specify that, in measuring the lease liability
subsequent to the sale and leaseback, the seller-lessee determines
‘lease payments’ and ‘revised lease payments’ in a way that does not
result in the seller lessee recognising any amount of the gain or loss that
relates to the right of use that it retains. This could particularly impact
sale and leaseback transactions where the lease payments include
variable payments that do not depend on an index or a rate

Supplier finance arrangements — Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 1
7: January
2024
The IASB has issued new disclosure requirements about supplier
financing arrangements (‘SFAs’), after feedback to an IFRS
Interpretations Committee agenda decision highlighted that the
information required by IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7
Financial Instruments:

Disclosures falls short of meeting user information needs. The objective
of the new disclosures is to provide information about SFAs that
enables investors to assess the effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash
flows and the exposure to liquidity risk. The new disclosures include
information about the following:

The terms and conditions of SFAs.

1. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are part of SFAs and
the line items in which those liabilities are presented.

2. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities in (b) for which
suppliers have already received payment from the finance providers.

3. The range of payment due dates for both the financial liabilities that
are part of SFAs, and comparable trade payables that are not part of
such arrangements.

4. Non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of financial liabilities in

(b).

5. Access to SFA facilities and concentration of liquidity risk with
finance providers.

The IASB has provided transitional relief by not requiring comparative
information in the first year, and also not requiring disclosure of
specified opening balances. Further, the required disclosures are only
applicable for annual periods during the first year of application.
Therefore, the earliest that the new disclosures will have to be provided
is in annual financial reports for December 2024 year-ends, unless an
entity has a financial year of less than 12 months.
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

2.3

Key requirements Effect
date *
Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its n/a

associate or joint venture — Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 -

The IASB has made Ilimited scope amendments to IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures.

The amendments clarify the accounting treatment for sales or
contribution of assets between an investor and their associates or joint
ventures. They confirm that the accounting treatment depends on
whether the nonmonetary assets sold or contributed to an associate or
joint venture constitute a ‘business’ (as defined in IFRS 3 Business
Combinations).

Where the non-monetary assets constitute a business, the investor will
recognise the full gain or loss on the sale or contribution of assets. If the
assets do not meet the definition of a business, the gain or loss is
recognised by the investor only to the extent of the other investor’s
interests in the associate or joint venture. The amendments apply
prospectively.

** In December 2015, the IASB decided to defer the application date of
this amendment until such time as the IASB has finalised its research
project on the equity method.

The management is still in the process of evaluating the impact of these new amendments on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, and it believes that there will be no significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements when they are implemented.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group in the current year starting 1 January 2023 or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Basis of consolidation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the financial statements of
the Company and its controlled subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. the Group
controls an investee if and only if the Group has

. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee),

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee.

. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

. The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
. Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
. The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control.
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed
to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Included in
consolidated statement of income: income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of income from
the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group considers transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the non-controlling
and controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve in the Group
owners' equity.

When the Group ceases consolidation or equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control, joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the
Company is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in the statement of other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in the statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated
statement of income.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced while retaining
joint control or effective influence, the shares from the amounts previously recognised
in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of income as appropriate.
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

The subsidiaries that have been consolidated in the consolidated financial statements is as
follows:

Legal status of the ~ Country of  Paid-up Percentage
Name of the Company Company incorporation capital  of equity
%
Limited liability
Jordan Scientific Library Company company Jordan 650,000 100
Private shareholding

Al Wasla Finance Company company Jordan 500,000 100
OFFTEC International Investment Limited liability

Company company Jordan 30,000 100
Trust International Company for Limited liability

Marketing and E-commerce company Jordan 250,000 100
OFFTEC Company for Office Limited liability

and Banking Systems company Jordan 400,000 100
Cherry Pot Electronic Trading Limited liability
Company company Jordan 250,000 100

Limited liability

World Axis Trading Company* company Jordan 100,000 100
OFFTEC Commercial Investment
and

Electronic Devices Trading Co. Limited liability
Ltd.** company Iraq 14,771 60
OFFTEC Iraq Investment Limited liability
Company company Jordan 5,000 60
Space Technology General Limited liability
Trading Company company Iraq 978 60
Palestine Office Technology Private Shareholding
Company — OFFTEC Company Palestine 91,530 100
OFFTEC Engineering Services Limited liability

Company *** company Sudan 640 100

Free zone limited

E-Points FZ-LLC liability UAE 9,660 100
Khartoum Company for Systems Limited liability

and Technology Co.***** company Sudan 1,850 100
Companies under liquidation:
E-Points Egyptian Company for Limited liability
Loyalty and Rewards (Note 30). company Egypt 7,610 95
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OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary Company consists of the following:

. Fair value of the transferred assets,

o Obligations incurred to the previous owners of the acquired business,

o Equity shares issued by the Group,

. The fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a emergent consideration
arrangement,

o The fair value of any pre-existing ownership interest in the subsidiary.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited exceptions, initially measured at their fair value at the
acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the proportionate interest of the non-
controlling interest in the net identifiable assets of the acquiree.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The increase is recognized in:

. consideration transferred,
o the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and
o The fair value at the acquisition date of any previous ownership interest in the

acquired entity over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired as goodwill.
If these amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired business, the difference is recognized directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of the cash consideration is deferred, the amounts due in the
future are discounted to their present value as on the date of the exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, which is the rate at which similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under similar terms and
conditions.

The contingent consideration is classified as either an equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved at stages, the fair value is remeasured to the
carrying amount of the acquirer's previously owned interest in the acquirer as on the
acquisition date. Gains or losses on remeasurement are recognized in profit or loss.

Reverse acquisition reserve

Reverse acquisition reserve relates to the reverse listing transaction that took place during
the year 2007. This reserve represents the difference between the authorized and paid-up
capital that is required to be shown under the Jordanian Companies Law and the
consolidated net assets of Jordan Scientific Library Company as on the date of the
transaction. This reserve is generally shown in the capital and not as a separate reserve but
is disclosed as such to meet the legal requirements in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

24

(a)

(b)

2.5

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates (“the
functional currency”). The presentation currency for these consolidated financial
statements is the Jordanian Dinar, which is the functional currency of the Group.
Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position items are translated at
the closing rate at the end of the respective reporting period.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
prevailing rates at the date of each transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from each settlement are recorded. Foreign exchange gains and losses
using the exchange rates prevailing at the end of each year are generally recognized
in the consolidated statement of income. Conversely, gains and losses are
recognized in equity if they relate to qualified cash flow hedges and qualified net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the borrowings are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income within finance costs. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of income on a net
basis within other profit/(loss).

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses and cancellations (if any). Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group, and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of income during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to allocate the cost of assets over their useful lives on a
straight-line basis, when the assets are ready for their intended use. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation calculation methods are reviewed at
each reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimates is accounted for on
prospective basis.
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(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

2.6

The Group estimated the useful lives of each category of property and equipment as
follows:

%

Leasehold improvements 20~
Furniture, fixture and decoration 20-25
Computers 25-35
Machinery, office equipment and electrical devices 20-30
Vehicles 20-25
* Or lease term whichever is lesser.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment
that is accounted for separately is capitalised, and the carrying amount of the
replaced component is written off. Other subsequent expenditures are capitalized
only when there is an increase in future economic benefits of the associated item of
property, plant and equipment, and all borrowing expenditures are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income as they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from the use or disposal of these items. Any
profit or loss resulting from the de-recognition of any asset (calculated on the basis of
the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is de-
recognised.

The residual value of the asset is estimated by estimating the amount that the Group
would currently receive by excluding the asset less the estimated disposal costs, if
the asset's condition is already of life and in the expected condition at the end of its
useful life. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded at cost which represents the increase in the acquisition or
purchase cost of an investment in the associate or subsidiary over the Company’s
share in the fair value of the net assets of that Company at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill resulting from investing in subsidiaries is recorded in a separate item as
intangible assets. Goodwill resulting from investing in associates recognized as part
of the investment account in the associate and the cost of goodwill is subsequently
reduced by any impairment in the investment value.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

Goodwill impairment is tested at the date of preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Goodwill is written down if there is an indication that it is impaired and if
the estimated recoverable amount of cash-generating units to which the goodwill
belongs is lower than the carrying amount of the cash-generating units. Impairment is
recognised in the consolidated .statement of comprehensive income
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2.7

2.8

2.9

210

Investment properties

Investment property is a property acquired either held for rental yields and/or capital
appreciation, but not to be sold in the ordinary course of the Company’s business,
nor to be used in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. The management uses the cost method Investment properties are initially
stated at cost and their fair values are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, which are estimated annually by an independent real estate
expert based on the market prices of those properties within an active real estate
market.

Investment in finance contracts

Under finance contracts, the Company finances the asset and transfers the benefit in
return for payments, andpromissory notes are issued against the value of the
financing in addition to the financing interests.

Investment in finance contracts is initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
,measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less provision for
impairment.

Finance contracts payments are divided between finance contracts income and the
principal payment so that the finance contract income appears as a constant interest
rate on the finance contract investment.

Inventories

Inventory is priced at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of inventory is
determined using the weighted average method. Cost includes related direct and
indirect costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling value in the Company's ordinary course
of business less expected selling expenses.

An impairment testing is conducted in the carrying value of inventory when there is
evidence indicating that the carrying value cannot be recovered. In the event of such
indications, the carrying value will be reduced to the value expected to be recovered.
.Impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of income

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recorded at the transaction price in relation to the performance
obligation less a provision for expected credit losses. On a prospective basis, the
Group assesses the expected credit losses using the expected credit loss (“ECL”)
approach over the life of the assets. Provision for expected credit losses is charge to
the consolidated statement of income. When the trade receivables are uncollectable,
they are written off against the provision for expected credit losses in the
.consolidated statement of incomeWhen a subsequent event causes the impairment
of the provision for expected credit losses, the impairment in the provision for
expected credit losses is reversed through the consolidated statement of income in
accordance with the logic of stage criteria specified in the Group's policy.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
.recognised at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at banks with original
maturities of three months or less.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies IFRS 9 to measure the expected credit loss model to all financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

The Group has three types of financial assets that are subject to the new expected
credit loss model in accordance with IFRS 9:

1. Trade receivables and other receivables
2. Investment in finance contracts
3. Bank balances

Trade receivables and other receivables:

The Group applies the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure ECL. The
calculation of expected credit losses depends on the probability of default, which is
calculated according to credit risks and economic factors, and the percentage of loss
assuming default, which depends on the collection of trade receivables based on the
characteristics of similar credit risks, the number of days of late payment and the
nature of client activity such as banking and government institutions, by adopting a
mathematical method based on collecting the ages of debts according to their age
table.

The Group uses key economic indicators in calculating expected credit loss, as
follows:

- Corporates and banking and government institutions: GDP growth indicators.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no possibility of recovery. Indications
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, among other things, the
debtor’s defaultby agreeing to a payment plan with the Company and the default in
paying contractual payments for a period of more than 360 days for companies and
for a period of more than 720 days for government and banking institutions.

The Group has calculated the impact of the provision for expected credit losses on
other receivable balances and has not recorded the provision for expected credit
losses for it as its effect is not significant.

Investment in finance contracts

The Group applies the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure ECL. The
calculation of expected credit losses depends on the probability of default, which is
calculated according to credit risks and economic factors, and the LGDwhich is
based on collecting investment balances in financing contracts based on the
characteristics of similar credit risks and the number of days of delay in payment.
Accordingly, the management has adopted a mathematical model based on these
principles.
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2.15

The Group uses key economic indicators in calculating expected credit losses, such
as the unemployment rate, as the Group's clients for financing contracts are
individuals. Trade receivables are written off when there is no possibility of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, among others,
the debtor defaulting on a payment plan agreement with the Company and defaulting
on contractual payments for more than 360 days.

Cash at banks

The cash in banks is subject to impairment requirements in accordance with IFRS 9.
The Company calculated the impact of the expected credit losses provision on cash
in banks and did not record the expected credit losses provision for it as its effect is
not significant.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:

- The Group will have a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events.

- It is probable that cash flows will be required to settle this obligation.

- Can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects time value of money, where appropriate and the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as part of the finance cost in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

End of service indemnity provision

The provision for end of service indemnity for the employees of the Palestine Office
Technology Company (subsidiary) is calculated according to the Palestinian Labour
Law No. (7) of 2000. The Company's management believes that the provision
prepared on the basis of the maturity date at the reporting date will not differ
materially from the actuarial valuation, as the net effect of the discount rate and
future settlements ofsalaries and remunerations on the present value of the
remunerations obligations is not material (Note 17).

Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services acquired in the ordinary
course of business. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is

due within one year or less. If not, they are classified as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
received amounts (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated statement of income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an conditional
right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the date of the
statement of consolidated financial position.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, canceled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities that has been
amortised or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
transferred non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income as income or other finance costs.

Borrowing costs

Direct borrowing costs related to purchase,construction or production of an asset
which requires a long period of time to become ready for its intended use or sale,
they are capitalised as part of the costs of such asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
comprise of interests and other costs that the Group incurs concerning obtaining
borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in
the period in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the income arising in the course of the normal activities of the Group.
Revenue is recognized at the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount
that the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring control of promised
goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Transfer of control either as follows:

° Fulfilment of the performance obligation at a point in timeor ;
o Fulfilment of the performance obligation over time equivalent to the stage of
service termination.

Revenue is recognized net of discounts, returns, value added taxes, export fees and
.other similar mandatory payments
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The Group’s revenue is recognized from the following key sources:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Sale of office equipment and accessories

Sales are recognized when control of the goods is transferred, and when the
goods are delivered to the customer, the customer has complete discretion
over the goods, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer's acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when the goods are
shipped to a specific location, and the risk of obsolescence and loss is
transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the goods
in accordance with the contract, the terms of acceptance have expired or the
Group has accepted the goods in accordance with the contract objective
evidence that all acceptance criteria have been met.

Sale of maintenance services under maintenance contracts

Revenue is recognized when the service is provided to the customer, the
advance payment based on the signed contract is deferred as a liability until
the service is provided to the customer.

Rental of printer

Revenue is recognized upon providing the service to the customer according
to theterms of the contract, based on the production unit (for example the
number of printed pages) completed during the contract period.

Finance contracts revenue

Revenue from finance contracts is recognized using the effective interest
method.

Sale of points

Revenue from points sold is recognized as it accrues at the point of direct
sale between cardholders and member merchants.

Membership and subscription revenue

Membership and subscriptions revenues are recognized when they are due
according to the terms of the contract.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account the contractually agreed terms of payment,
revenue is recognized in the consolidated statement of income to the extent
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
revenue and costs, as appropriate, can be measured reliably.
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2.20

Dividends

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which the distributions are
approved by the General Assembly of the Company’s shareholders.

Dividends liabilities are recognized against the amount of any declared dividends,
which have been appropriately declared and are no longer at the discretion of the

Group, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period. Dividends liabilities are recognized as a direct discount on

retained earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in consolidated equity,
with any unpaid amount included in other payables in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Leases

The Group recognized the right-of-use asset and the lease liability as at 1 January
2019, which is the present value of all minimum lease payments for the remaining
five years that represent the maximum contract term except for the extension option
(which is not mandatory). Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis to
allocate the cost over the entire term of the right-of-use asset for 5 years. The lease
liability interest is computed using the 8% interest rate as the discount rate.

Leases are recognized as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date
on which the assets are available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and the finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
the consolidated statement of income over the lease term. Amortization is computed
on right-of-use assets over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term,
using the straight-line method.

Assets and liabilities arising from leases are measured based on the present value.
Lease assets include the net present value of the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any accrued
lease incentives.

- Variable lease payments based on index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the starting date.

- Amounts expected to be paid by the Group under residual value guarantees.

- The exercise price of the call option if the Group is reasonably sure of
exercising this option.

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term indicates the
lessee exercising this option.

Lease payments that could be paid under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the liability.

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate included in the lease. If the
lease does not include interest rates, which is generally the case for the Group’s
leases, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, which is the rate an
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds needed to obtain an asset of
similar value to a right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
.terms, security and conditions.
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2.21

2.22

Interest rates on recently financed loans that have the same repayment
characteristics as lease payments can be used as a reference to determine the
incremental borrowing rate for calculating the asset and liability of leases.

The lease payments are allocated between the principal of the loan and the finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to the consolidated statement of income over the
lease term in order to produce a constant periodic interest rate on the remaining
balance of the liability for each term.

The right of use assets are asset measured at cost, which includes the following:

- The initial measurement amount of the lease liability.

- Any lease payment made on or before the contract commencement date, less
any received lease incentives.

- Any direct initial costs.

- Costs of repairs to return the leased asset to its condition prior to lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset
and the lease term, on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life
of the underlying asset.

Payments relating to short-term leases for impaired assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the consolidated statement of income. Short-term
leases are leases with a term of 12 months or less without a purchase option.

Earnings per share
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing:

* Net profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary shareholders.

* by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares (where applicable).

Diluted earnings per share amends the figures used to determine the basic earnings
per share in order to take into account the potential diluted impacts of ordinary
shares.

Income tax

Tax expenses represent the amounts of tax payable and deferred tax. Tax is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the consolidated statement of financial position date in the
countries where the Group and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

29



OFFTEC HOLDING GROUP

(PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

2.23

2.24

2.25

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the consolidated statement of financial position date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group’s chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision-
maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. Reportable segments whose revenue, result or assets are ten
percent or more of all the segments are reported separately.

Offsetting

Offsetting between financial assets and financial liabilities and presenting the net
amount on the consolidated statement of financial position is performed only when
there are legally enforceable rights to offset, the settlement is on a net basis, or the
realization of the assets and satisfaction of the liabilities is simultaneous.

High Inflationary Economies

When consolidating the Group's financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations (whose functional currency is not the currency of a country with a
high inflationary economy), including comparison instruments, are converted into
Jordanian dinars at the prevailing exchange rate on the reporting date and their
income statement is converted at the average exchange rates. Exchange differences
arising from the translation of foreign operations are recognized in the statement of
other comprehensive income. On the partial or complete disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
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The financial statements of foreign operations (whose functional currency is the
currency of a country with a high inflationary economy) are translated into Jordanian
dinars at the prevailing exchange rate on the reporting date. Before transferring the
financial statements of foreign operations in a high inflationary economy, the
statement of income and non-monetary items of the statement of financial position
are adjusted taking into account the changes in the general purchasing power of the
functional currency on the basis of inflation up to the date of the statement of
financial position. Net monetary gain or loss is recognized as part of “other income
(expenses)” in the consolidated statement of income.

The Group's risk is managed under the policies approved by the Board of Directors.
Management identifies and assesses financial risks in close cooperation with the
Group's operating units. The Board of Directors sets principles for comprehensive
risk management, as well as policies covering specific risk areas such as currency
exchange risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

(3) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

- Foreign exchange risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are in the Jordanian Dinar, US Dollar or
Euro.

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk,
principally the Euro and the US Dollar. Currency exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and the assets and liabilities recognized in a
currency other than the Group's functional currency.

Management mitigates foreign exchange risk by focusing most of the
transactions in US Dollars. The exchange rate of the US Dollars is fixed
against the Jordanian Dinar(1.41 US dollars per JD). As for other currencies,
management records the exchange differences directly in the consolidated
statement of income when they are realized.

Management also sets limits on the amount of risk that can be accepted and
the level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for each of the daily
positions, which are monitored daily.
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The table below shows the sensitivity analysis to future changes in the
conversion rate of the Euro currency:

Change
percentage 2023 2022
% JD JD

The financial effect of the

increase in the exchange rate
Assets 10 26,909 31,253
Liabilities 10 (3,231) (15,730)
Net effect 23,678 15,523
The financial effect of the

decrease in the exchange rate
Assets 10 (23,428) (8,856)
Liabilities 10 3,463 6,513
Net effect (19,965) (2,343)

For the purpose of consolidating the Group's financial statements, the Group
has used the official market rates of foreign currencies as at 31 December
2023, the foreign exchange rates on that date were as follows:

- The Jordanian dinar compared to the Sudanese pound is 846.5 Sudanese
pounds per dinar.

- The Jordanian dinar compared to Euro is 1.1 Euros per dinar.
- Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risks arise from loans at variable rates, while fair value
interest rate risks arise from loans at fixed interest rates.

Management analyses interest rate risks on a regular basis taking into consideration
any rescheduling of liabilities. The Group calculates the financial impact on profits
and losses of a defined interest rate increase or decrease. This analysis is performed
for interest bearing assets and liabilities.

Based on this analysis, the effect on the year profit is as follows:

Increase in
interest rate 2023 2022
% JD JD
Liabilities
Net effect 1 (129,329) (115,640)

The effect of decrease in interest rate is equal with a reversed sign.

In July 2017, the UK Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) announced, which regulates
the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), announced that this interest standard
was discontinued by 2023. The discontinuation of LIBOR affects the Group's current
risk management strategy and potentially account for some financial instruments.
The Group assessed the impact and future steps to ensure a smooth transition from
LIBOR to the new benchmark rates.
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(b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management involves maintaining sufficient cash and availability through appropriate facilities. Management monitors
rolling forecasts of the Group’s cash liquidity reserve including borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of

estimated cash flows.

The table below analyzes the Group’s financial liabilities into specific categories as at the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position based on the maturity date of the remaining periods. The amounts included in the table are for contractual undiscounted cash

flows.

Balances due within 12 months equal their book balances.

Less than Between 1 Between 2 to Value
1 year and 2 years Syears Total book
JD JD JD JD JD
As at 31 December 2023
Borrowings 8,734,316 1,170,288 14,257 9,918,861 9,829,233
Bank overdrafts 3,351,944 - - 3,351,944 3,103,652
Lease liabilities 292,335 329,810 223,903 846,048 775,457
Trade payables 4,037,418 - - 4,037,418 4,037,418
Other payables 7,202,763 - - 7,202,763 7,202,763
Total 23,618,776 1,500,098 238,160 25,357,034 24,786,020
As at 31 December 2022
Borrowings 7,134,760 1,087,793 21,982 8,244,535 8,159,426
Bank overdrafts 3,676,926 - - 3,676,926 3,404,561
Lease liabilities 302,454 336,574 356,227 995,255 896,881
Trade payables 3,763,666 - - 3,763,666 3,763,666
Other payables 4,907,341 - - 4,907,341 4,907,341
Total 19,785,147 1,424,367 378,209 21,587,723 21,131,875
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(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if any of the Group’s customers fails to fulfil their
contractual obligations towards the Group.

The Group is exposed to credit risk on the following financial instruments:

Impairment
Category Classification Value approach
- Trade
receivables 7,404,057 Simplified approach
Financial assets at - Investment in
amortised cost finance contracts 13,354,582 Simplified approach
- Cash and cash
equivalents 3,034,187 General approach

Credit risk is managed under the direction of the Group's Board of Directors.

Trade receivables and investment in finance contracts:

The Board of Directors receives regular reports from the credit department that
manages the performance of trade receivables and investment in finance contracts.
The credit department has established policies and procedures to manage credit risk
on trade .receivables and investment in finance contracts

. The Group formulates the levels of credit risk it bears by setting limits on the
amount of credit risk acceptable to the customer. Limits on the level of credit
risk are regularly approved by the management. These limits are monitored
on a an ongoing basis and are subject to one or more frequent annual
reviews.

. When credit is granted, an assessment is made of the debtor's
creditworthiness and ability to pay.

. After credit is granted, the credit department, on a monthly basis, reviews the
aging analysis and follows up on all outstanding payments.

. The credit department determines the appropriate receivables that must be
submitted for collection, the amount of the provision that must be recorded in
these receivables and the amounts that must be written off. The Board of
Directors approves credit risk management procedures, the amount of
provision to be recognized and the amounts to be written off.

Other financial instruments:
The Department applies the following policies and procedures:

° All bank accounts and deposits are held with reputable financial institutions
with appropriate credit ratings acceptable to the Group. The Group is not
exposed to concentrations of credit risk with respect to cash balances with

banks.

. The Group invests only in high quality deposits.

° Where appropriate, the Board of Directors sets limits on exposure to credit
risk.
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Concentration of credit risk

The Group is exposed to concentrations of credit risk in respect of trade receivables.
The trade receivables of government ministries represent approximately 33% of the
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 32%), while the trade
receivables of banking institutions represent approximately 28% of the total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 29%) (Note 11). The management
reviews concentration risk on a monthly basis and when required it performs risk
management processes. As for investing in financing contracts, there is no
concentration of credit risks with the Group's clients.

Trade receivables

The simplified approach is used in determining the credit loss allowance for trade
receivables. The provision matrix is used to determine the provision. The provision
matrix is based on the number of days in the receivables are past due and is also
based on the classification of the commercial sector for some clients such as banking
and government institutions (Note 11).

Investment in finance contracts at amortised cost:

The simplified approach is used to determine the credit loss allowance for investment
balances in financing contracts at amortized cost. The provision matrix is used to
determine the provision. The provision matrix is based on the number of days that
the receivables are past due. The management takes into account unemployment
rates to calculate the expected credit losses due to the nature of the clients for these
contracts, which are mostly individuals (Note 9).

Credit risk related to bank balances

The Group manages the credit risk arising from balances with banks and other
financial institutions by investing funds with accredited and reputable banks and
within the credit limits assigned to each bank. Credit risk management considers
diversification of funds with banks or ensuring that banks are not under any financial
distress.
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3.2

All bank accounts and deposits are held with reputable financial institutions with
appropriate credit ratings acceptable to the Group. The Group is not exposed to
concentrations of credit risk with respect to cash balances with banks. The following
is a summary of the classifications of banks that the Group deals with:

Jordanian banks Classification Foreign banks Classification

Arab Banking

Corporation Bank BB+ Gulf Bank Unrated
Arab Jordan Investment

Bank B+ Arab African International Bank B+
Bank of Jordan BB- Faisal Islamic Bank of Egypt Unrated
Al-Rajhi Bank B1 Bank of Khartoum Unrated
Jordan Commercial Cihan Bank for Investment and

Bank BB- Islamic Finance B-
Arab Bank Ba2 Mashreq Bank A3
Bank Al Etihad BB- National Bank of Iraq B-
Cairo Amman Bank B1

Capital Bank B1

Safwa Islamic Bank B+

Housing bank for trade

and finance B1

Invest Bank BB-

Islamic International

Arab bank Ba2

Jordan Islamic Bank BB-

Jordan Ahli Bank B1

Jordan Dubai Islamic

Bank B+

Jordan Kuwait Bank BB-

Capital risk management

The Group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the costs of share capital.

The Group monitors its capital by monitoring the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. The net debt is calculated by counting the total
loans, which include loans and bank overdrafts, net of cash and cash equivalents, as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital is calculated
as shareholders equity plus net debt as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. There are no debt covenants associated with these borrowings.

In order to maintain or amend capital, the Group may amend the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt. The Group seeks to maintain an indebtedness ratio between 20% -
50%.
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Gearing ratio was as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Total borrowings 12,932,885 11,563,987
Cash and cash equivalents (3,034,187) (1,539,503)
Net debt 9,898,698 10,024,484
Net equity 15,310,518 20,033,207
Total share capital 25,209,216 30,057,691
Gearing ratio 39% 33%

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and some
other receivables. Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, bank overdrafts, lease
liabilities and accounts payable and some other payables.

The fair value of financial instruments does not materially differ from their carrying

amount.

3.4 Financial instruments by category

2023 2022
JD JD
Financial assets as per the consolidaed statement of
financial position
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 7,404,057 7,399,114
Investment in finance contracts at amortised cost 13,354,582 10,034,141
Other receivables
(excluding prepaid expenses, advances, and income
and sales tax deposits) 664,138 636,012

Cash and cash equivalents 3,034,187 1,539,503

24,456,964 19,608,770
Financial liabilities as per the consolidated statement of
financial position
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings and bank overdrafts 12,932,885 11,563,987
Lease liabilities 775,457 896,881
Trade payables 4,037,418 3,763,666
Other payables

(excluding payments received from clients and deferred

revenue) 2,975,373 1,961,679

20,721,133 18,186,213
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(4)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
management's experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management also makes certain
judgments, apart from those involving estimates, in the process of applying accounting
policies. Judgments that have a material effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and estimates that could cause a significant adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

(a)

(b)

Provision for expected credit loss:

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgements in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s historical experience, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the date of each reporting period.

The expected loss rates are based on payment data for the sales and investments
in financing contracts of the prior 60 months of each reporting date. Historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and future information on macroeconomic
factors that affect customers' ability to settle payables.

Details of key assumptions and inputs in the accounting policy are disclosed
(Note 2.12).

The Group uses key economic indicators in calculating expected credit loss:

- Corporate: GDP growth indicators.
- Retail: Indicators of the unemployment rate.

The details of calculating the expected credit loss allowance are demonstrated in
notes 9 and 11.

Provision for employees' end of service indemnity

The Group establishes a provision for end-of-service indemnity for the employees of
thePalestine Office Technology Company (a subsidiary) in accordance with the
Palestinian Labor Law No. (7) of 2000 , and in accordance with therequirements of
International Accounting Standard No. (19), “Employee benefits’, the Group’s
management estimates the current value of its liabilities as at 31 December 2022
using the projected unit credit method related to the end of service indemnity payable
to employees under the applicable Palestinian Labour Law. The expected liability at
the date of leaving the service has been discounted to its net current value using a
discount rate of 5.15%. Under this method, an assessment is made of the expected
service life of the employees with the Group and the expected salary at the date of
leaving the service. Management has assumed average premium /upgrade costs of
4%. The Group also performs sensitivity tests for the variables used in the calculation
process, as shown in note (17) of the consolidated financial statements.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Provision for slow-moving goods

The Group prepares an annual study on the life of ready goods, spare parts and
maintenance supplies, and accordingly it is classified into slow moving goods and its
consideration is allocated in proportion to the age of these goods, parts and supplies
from the date of purchase. Due to the nature of the goods, which are not affected by
the expiration dates, the management takes a full provision on the goods purchased
and unsold for more than 3 years as on the date of the consolidated financial
statements.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax, which requires making judgements in
determining the provision for income tax. The Group recognises income tax liabilities
depending on its expectations on whether the taxation audit will result in any
additional tax. If the final tax estimation is different from what was recorded, such
differences will affect the current income tax in the period when recognising that
such differences exist.

Leases

Determining lease term: In determining the lease term, management considers all
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension
option, or not (or periods following the termination options) are included only in the
term of the lease if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated). The evaluation is reviewed in the event of a significant event or
significant change in the circumstances that affect this evaluation and that are under
the control of the lessee.

Discounting of lease payments: Lease payments were discounted using the
additional financing rate. Management applied provisions and estimates to determine
the additional financing rate at the start of the lease.

Impairment of goodwill

In accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard No. (36),
the Group is required to perform an impairment test for intangible assets that do not
have a definite life at each reporting date. The recoverable amount of these assets
has been determined by calculating the value in use, which requires certain
assumptions to be made. The management takes into consideration some indicators
of impairment, such as changes in prices, any recent technological developments
that affect production efficiency, a decrease in demand, and instability in the
country's political conditions and other indicators.

These calculations use the cash flows expectations based on the financial budgets

approved by the management of the Group which covers a period of five years. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates.
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Management has determined the values assigned to the key assumptions for each
individual CGU as follows:

Assumption The approach used in determining the values

Sales Annual growth rate over the expected five-year period;
based on the current directions of the Group's business
activity.

Gross profit margin | Based on the previous performance and the expectations of

in the budget the management regarding the future.

Other operating The management forecasts these costs based on the

costs current business structure, by adjusting the inflation

increases which don’t reflect any future restructuring or cost
saving measures. The amounts disclosed represent the
five-year average operating costs, which is the forecast

period.
Annual capital It is based on the historical experience of the management,
expenditures and the planned renovation expenses.
Long term growth This is the weighted average growth rate used to generate
rate cash flows which exceed the budget period.
Discount rate It reflects the specific risks associated with the business of

the related companies and the countries in which the Group
companies operate.
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(5) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Computers Machinery and office
Leasehold Furniture, fixture and equipment
improvements and decoration accessories  and electrical devices Vehicles Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD
2023
Cost
1 January 90,685 666,244 614,731 2,828,057 447,799 4,647,516
Additions 1,767 99,411 256,259 515,417 13,471 886,325
Disposals - (800) (11,312) (6,736) (10,000) (28,848)
31 December 92,452 764,855 859,678 3,336,738 451,270 5,504,993
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2023 65,094 479,505 539,549 2,399,101 413,052 3,896,301
Depreciation expense** 9,776 80,795 41,482 269,321 14,594 415,968
Related to disposals - - - (1,863) (7,833) (9,696)
31 December 74,870 560,300 581,031 2,666,559 419,813 4,302,573
Net carrying value at
31 December 17,582 204,555 278,647 670,179 31,457 1,202,420

*

The value of the fully depreciated property and equipment that is still used in the Group’s operations amounted to JD 3,378,865 as at
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: JD 3,168,681).

*%

The details of the distribution of depreciation expense to the items of the consolidated statement of income are as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Item of operating expenses (Note 23-1) 284,832 226,056
Item of administrative expenses (Note 24) 131,136 119,367
415,968 345,423
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Computers Machinery and office
Leasehold Furniture, fixture and equipment
improvements and decoration accessories  and electrical devices Vehicles Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD
2022
Cost
1 January 90,251 599,307 599,654 2,640,451 617,878 4,547,541
Additions 434 89,800 48,636 231,205 13,251 383,326
Disposals - (22,863) (33,559) (43,599) (183,330) (283,351)
31 December 90,685 666,244 614,731 2,828,057 447,799 4,647,516
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 55,040 431,760 526,459 2,229,660 520,556 3,763,475
Depreciation expense** 10,054 69,881 39,910 195,696 29,882 345,423
Related to disposals - (22,136) (26,820) (26,255) (137,386) (212,597)
31 December 65,094 479,505 539,549 2,399,101 413,052 3,896,301
Net carrying value at
31 December 25,591 186,739 75,182 428,956 34,747 751,215
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(6) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

This item represents the goodwill balance which is the value paid that exceeds the fair value
of the acquired net assets of the subsidiaries.

2023 2022

JD JD
Balance as at 1 January 12,499,683 12,499,683
Goodwill impairment (5,707,425) -
Balance as at 31 December 6,792,258 12,499,683

The largest part of the goodwill totalling JD 12,299,683, resulted in the year 2007 from the
allocation of the purchase price resulting from the acquisition of Jordan Scientific Library
Company for Alwasleh For Finance Company and Palestine Office Technology Company -
OFFTEC that has been accounted for in accordance with the principle of reverse acquisition
as described in Note (14).

Management believes that the impact of the aggression on Gaza Strip, and the
accompanying downturn in the Palestinian economy in various parts of Palestine, will
fundamentally affect the financial and operational performance of Palestine Office
Technology Company - OFTEC in the near and long term, as a result of the following
factors:

1. According to initial estimates from the Palestinian Central Bureau of Statistics (PCBS),
the GDP in Gaza Strip witnessed a decline of over 80% in the fourth quarter for the year
2023 comparing to the third quarter.

2. The private sector in the State of Palestine faced production losses totalling around USD
1.5 billion in the first two months of the conflict.

3. The decline in sources of income due to job losses, lack of employment opportunities,
the decline in trade and private sector activity, the increased restrictions on movement
and transportation, and the temporary reductions in the salaries of the public sectors in
West Bank, all of this, would lead the decline in growth rates due to its impact on the
consumption levels.

4. Withholding the revenues of clearing transfers and the primarily dependent of the
Palestinian Authority on the foreign aids to handle the deficit in the budget.

5. Increase in trade and shipping costs.

6. According to estimates from the International Monetary Fund, the real GDP in West
Bank and Gaza Strip dropped by 6% in the year 2023 and the inflation increased to
more than 15% on an annual basis as at 31 December 2023.

On 31 December 2023, the Group’s management performed impairment testing for the
goodwill. The recoverable amount of the office and banking devices, software, information
technology, and lighting devices sector was determined by calculating the value in use of the
sector, which was calculated based on the projected cash flows for five years according to
the cash-generating units using the discounted cash flow model based on the estimated
budget for the year 2024 which was approved by the Group’s management. Expected cash
flows after 2028 have been calculated using a growth rates ranging between 2% and 3%.

The management believes that the growth rate is appropriate given the nature of the
business and the general growth in the economic activity in the areas in which it operates. A
discount rate before tax ranging from 13.41% to 14.61% has been used to discount the
projected cash flows, which represents the weighted average of the Group’s Weighted
average cost of capital (WACC) as amended to take into consideration the risks specific to
the sectors in which the Group operates. This test resulted in impairment of the goodwill by
JD 5,707,425.
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Calculating the value in use is impacted by the following assumptions:

- Adjusted profit (before depreciation, amortisation, interests and taxes).
- Discount rate.
- Growth rate used in calculating the projected cash flows.

(7) RIGHT OF USE OF LEASED ASSETS / LEASE LIABILITIES

The lease liabilities have been discounted using an average discount rate of 8% over a

period of 5 years.

2023 2022
JD JD
Right of use of leased assets
Balance as at 1 January 1,797,863 1,844,509
Additions 237,743 140,909
Disposals - (187,555)
Balance as at 31 December 2,035,606 1,797,863
Accumulated amortization
Balance as at 1 January 887,004 698,148
Amortization of right of use assets 369,980 319,095
Related to disposals - (130,239)
Balance as at 31 December 1,256,984 887,004
Carrying value
Balance as at 31 December 778,622 910,859
2023 2022
JD JD
Lease liabilities
Balance as at 1 January 896,881 1,136,178
Additions 222,076 123,113
Interest expense (Note 29) 85,704 91,796
Lease payments including interest (429,204) (414,686)
Disposals - (39,520)
Balance as at 31 December 775,457 896,881
Lease liabilities have been presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
follows:
Current 292,335 302,454
Non-current 483,122 594,427
775,457 896,881
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:
2023 2022
JD JD
Amortization of right of use assets 369,980 319,095
Interest expense 85,704 91,796
455,684 410,891
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(8) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

This item balance represents an investment in plot No. 744 with an area of 3,024 square
meters in the Basin of Bela'as 16 Na'ur district. The Group’s management has evaluated the
investment in this plot on 10 January 2024 by independent valuers, and it was found that the

average market value of the plot is estimated at JD 1,210,000.

(9) NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE CONTRACTS AT AMORTISED COST

2023 2022
JD JD

Total investment in long-term finance contracts

(over one year) 1,326,923 1,738,798
Total investment in short-term finance contracts 19,187,949 15,195,909
Total 20,514,872 16,934,707
Deferred revenues (3,835,020) (4,475,333)
Total before expected credit loss 16,679,852 12,459,374
Provision for expected credit losses for investment

in finance contracts (3,325,270) (2,425,233)
Current value of the minimum finance contracts 13,354,582 10,034,141
Less: net investment in long-term finance contracts (1,093,493) (1,126,950)
Net investment in finance contracts that are due

within a year 12,261,089 8,907,191

The movement in the provision for expected credit losses for investment in finance contracts

during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Balance as at 1 January 2,425,233 1,464,849
Provision for expected credit losses for investment
in finance contracts 1,465,543 960,384
Write offs (565,506) -
Balance as at 31 December 3,325,270 2,425,233

The Group applies the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure ECL which uses an
expected .lifetime loss provision for all investments in finance contracts

The credit loss provision for investment in financing contracts is determined according to the

ageing table presented in the table below.

The ageing schedule for receivables is based on the number of days in which premiums are

overdue and contractual payments are defaulted.
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Instalments 1-90 91-120 121-180 181-360 Over 360
31 December 2023 not due days days days days days Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
Expected loss rate 0.00% 6.55% 16.27% 21.84% 47.32% 94.15% 16.21%
Total investment in finance contracts 10,839,047 4,729,575 545,855 865,471 1,261,340 2,273,584 20,514,872
Provision for expected credit losses
in finance contracts - 310,020 88,815 189,011 596,865 2,140,559 3,325,270
Instalments 1-90 91-120 121-180 181-360 Over 360
31 December 2022 not due days days days days days Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
Expected loss rate 0.00% 6.89% 10.42% 15.77% 43.39% 97.62% 14.32%
Total investment in finance contracts 9,804,658 3,439,423 436,991 617,957 973,369 1,662,309 16,934,707
Provision for expected credit losses
in finance contracts - 237,005 45,530 97,475 422,394 1,622,829 2,425,233

46



OFFTEC HoLDING GROUP PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2023

(10) INVENTORY

2023 2022
JD JD
Goods ready for sale inventory 5,158,235 4 552,338
Spare parts and maintenance supplies inventory 1,769,273 1,610,892
Goods in transit 15,969 1,291,259
6,943,477 7,454,489
Provision for slow-moving goods (640,250) (703,205)
6,303,227 6,751,284
The details of the provision for slow-moving goods are as follows:
2023 2022
JD JD
Provision for slow-moving goods of finished goods 227,212 265,065
Provision for slow-moving goods of spare parts and
maintenance supplies 413,038 438,140
640,250 703,205
The movement in the provision for slow-moving goods during the year is as follows:
2023 2022
JD JD
Balance as at 1 January 703,205 878,574
Reversal of provision for slow-moving goods during
the year (62,955) (175,317)
Write-offs from inventory - (52)
Balance as at 31 December 640,250 703,205
(11) TRADE RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
JD JD
Trade receivables 8,587,208 8,295,029
Cheques under collection 205,290 269,545
8,792,498 8,564,574
Provision for expected credit losses (1,388,441) (1,165,460)
7,404,057 7,399,114
The movement in the expected credit loss provision for receivables during the year is as
follows:
2023 2022
JD JD
Balance as at 1 January 1,165,460 1,376,329
Provision for expected credit loss during the year 245,382 12,825
Write offs (22,401) (223,694)
Balance as at 31 December 1,388,441 1,165,460

As shown below, trade receivables of government ministries represent approximately 33% of
the total trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 32%), while the trade receivables
of banking institutions represent approximately 28% of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2023 (2022: 29%).
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The Group applies the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure ECL. The calculation of expected credit losses depends on the probability of
default, which is calculated according to credit risks and economic factors, and the LGD which is based on the grouping of trade receivables
based on similar credit risk characteristics,and the number of past-due days. Accordingly the management has adopted a mathematical model
based on the bases mentioned below to calculate the expected credit losses, and as shown below, the expected credit losses were measured as

at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

0-90 91-120 121-150 151-180 181-360
days days days days days Over 360 days Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

31 December 2023

Expected loss rate 6.56% 10.17% 11.75% 14.61% 21.57% 43.72% 15.79%
Total carrying value recorded for

due invoices 1,615,640 446,195 114,474 156,968 233,694 933,420 3,500,391
Total carrying value recorded for

due invoices (Government) 1,207,476 410,900 60,188 368,253 534,115 289,678 2,870,610
Total carrying value recorded for

due invoices (Banking institutions) 1,452,887 447,223 84,361 17,724 82,747 336,555 2,421,497
Total trade receivables 4,276,003 1,304,318 259,023 542,945 850,556 1,559,653 8,792,498
Provision for expected credit loss 280,715 132,679 30,435 79,303 183,451 681,858 1,388,441
31 December 2022

Expected loss rate 0.28% 0.61% 4.33% 15.63% 33.31% 67.72% 13.61%
Total carrying value recorded for

due invoices 2,208,261 279,662 39,110 26,671 274,241 566,750 3,394,695
Total carrying value recorded for

due invoices (Government) 956,285 848,254 41,618 40,087 217,106 621,186 2,724,536
Total carrying value recorded for

due invoices (Banking institutions) 2,017,306 54,302 16,024 8,386 223,011 126,314 2,445,343
Total trade receivables 5,181,852 1,182,218 96,752 75,144 714,358 1,314,250 8,564,574
Provision for expected credit loss 14,385 7,236 4,185 11,742 237,966 889,946 1,165,460

Trade receivables are written off when there is no possibility of recovery. Indications that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
among other things, the debtor’s default by agreeing to a payment plan with the Groupand the default in paying contractual payments for a
period of more than 360 days for companies and for a period of more than 720 days for government and banking institutions.
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(12) OTHER RECEIVABLES

2023 2022

JD JD
Restricted use assets* 454 217 447,486
Advances to suppliers 502,240 393,814
Refundable deposits 216,140 359,751
Prepaid expenses 323,538 243,236
Sales and income tax deposits 513,282 179,942
Employees’ receivables 35,069 32,533
Other 174,852 155,993
2,219,338 1,812,755

*

This item represents an expense exclusively designated for the purposes of
employees’ end of service indemnity (Note 17), as this account is settled and
replenishment periodically.

(13) CAsH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022

JD JD
Cash at banks 2,901,015 1,378,676
Cash on hand 133,172 160,827
3,034,187 1,539,503

The Group’s management calculated the expected credit losses on the cash at banks,
however, did not book the provision as the loss given default was considered to be
immaterial.

(14) REVERSE ACQUISITION RESERVE

As required by IFRS 3, the equity structure of the Group's consolidated financial statements
(number and type of equity interests issued) should reflect the equity structure of Offtec
Holding (listed on the stock market). Therefore, the difference between the equity position of
the Company and the net assets of Jordan Scientific Library Company was recognized as a
separate reserve in equity (reverse acquisition reserve in the amount of JD 18,627,185)
instead of deduction from the paid-up capital, in order to meet the legal requirements on
capital in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.
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(15) SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital

The authorised, subscribed and paid in capital of the Group is JD 34,850,000 divided into
34,850,000 shares, each with a nominal value of one dinar.

The below table shows the shareholders that have a significant influence on the Group:

Number of
shares Contribution rate
%

Marwan Saeed 8,485,574 24.349
Basem Saeed 5,029,987 14.433
Rima Tanous 3,522,915 10.109
Dina Saeed 3,086,418 8.856
Samir Saeed 2,510,077 7.203
Mona Saeed 2,510,077 7.203
Hanada Saeed 1,937,602 5.560

Amortization of accumulated losses and capital reduction

The Company’s share capital amounted to JD 39,569,500 on 1 January 2022. The Group’s
General Assembly decided, in its extraordinary meeting held on 19 July 2022, to reduce the
Company’s share capital by the amount of the accumulated losses balance as at 31
December 2021 amounting to JD 3,705,760 and to reduce the Company’s authorized and
paid-up capital with an amount of JD 1,013,740 as a surplus over the Group’s need and to
be repaid to the shareholders so that the Company’s authorized and paid-up capital
becomes 34,850,000 shares, with a nominal value of one JD for each, whereby the legal
requirements have been completed within the Companies Control Department on 27
September 2022.

Statutory Reserve

According to the Jordanian Companies Law and the Group's by-laws, the Group should
deduct 10% of its annual net profit to transfer to the statutory reserve, and this deduction
continues for each year, provided that the total deducted amounts for the reserve do not
exceed 25% of the Group’s capital. For the purposes of this Law, net profits represent profits
before the income tax and fees provision deduction. This reserve is not available for
distribution to shareholders.

Dividends

The Group’s General Assembly decided, in its extraordinary meeting held on 30 April 2023
to approve the Board of Directors’ proposal regarding the distribution of cash dividends to
shareholders at the rate of 3.5% of the Company’s authorised, subscribed and paid in
capital, amounting to JD 1,219,750. The Group paid JD 1,216,015 of these profits as at 31
December 2023.
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(16) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following are the details of non-controlling interest balances distributed among
subsidiaries that are not wholly owned by the Group:

2023 2022
JD JD
OFFTEC Commercial Investment and Electronic
Devices Trading Co. Ltd. (Note 16.3) 826,214 672,243
OFFTEC Iraq Investment Company (5,582) (3,071)
Space Technology General Trading Company 13,846 3,745
Balance as at 31 December 834,478 672,917

The movement in the non-controlling interests during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD

Balance as at 1 January 672,917 374,279
Non-controlling interests of business results 246,641 145,983
Dividends of non-controlling interests (Note 16.1) (85,080) (28,360)
Disposal of the non-controlling interests in OFFTEC

Engineering Services Company - 168,208
Disposal of non-controlling interests in the Egyptian
Company for Loyalty and Rewards (Note 29) - 12,807
Balance as at 31 December 834,478 672,917

16.1  During the year ended 31 December 2023, OFFTEC for Commercial Investment and
Trading of Electronic Devices Co. Ltd. (Iraq) distributed dividends amounting to JD
212,700 (2022: JD 70,900), and the non-controlling interests amounted to 40% at an
amount of JD 85,080 (2022: JD 28,360).

16.2 On 24 July 2022, the Group acquired all interests of OFFTEC Engineering Services
Company. Thus, OFFTEC Engineering Services Company becomes wholly owned
by the Group. As a result of this acquisition, the Group incurred an amount of JD
168,208, which represents 50% of the net deficit in the equity of OFFTEC
Engineering Services Company.

The Group has one subsidiary with a significant balance of non-controlling interests, which
are as follows:

Shareholding  Percentage of
percentage of  voting rights of

Name of the Country of non-controlling non-controlling
Company incorporation Operating activities interests interests
OFFTEC Commercial Iraq Import, marketing 40% 40%
Investment and and maintenance
Electronic Devices of office and
Trading Co. Ltd. banking equipment
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16.4 Statement of financial position

OFFTEC Commercial Investment and
Electronic Devices Trading Co.

2023 2022
JD JD
Non-current assets 298,333 245,980
Current assets 3,190,712 3,171,901
Non-current liabilities - 22,032
Current liabilities 1,423,509 1,715,242
Total equity 2,065,536 1,680,607
Non-controlling interests of equity 826,214 672,243

16.5 Statement of income and statement of comprehensive Income

OFFTEC Commercial Investment and
Electronic Devices Trading Co.

2023 2022
JD JD

Revenue 5,168,513 6,638,145
Cost of sales (3,092,625) (4,793,192)
Gross profit 2,075,888 1,844,953
General and administrative expenses (1,414,726) (1,198,868)
Expected credit losses (14,263) (34,111)
Operating profit 646,899 611,974
Finance costs (45,340) (59,368)
Profit for the year before tax 601,559 552,606
Income tax (3,929) (2,979)
Profit for the year 597,630 549,627
Non-controlling interest from the profit for the

year 239,052 219,851

16.6 Statement of cash flows

OFFTEC Commercial Investment and
Electronic Devices Trading Co.

2023 2022
JD JD
Operating activities 452,063 172,136
Investing activities (197,135) (47,260)
Financing activities (291,718) (154,609)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (36,790) (29,733)
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(17) END OF SERVICE INDEMNITY PROVISION

2023 2022
JD JD
Balance as at 1 January 1,140,346 1,038,065
Provision charged during the year (Note 24) 159,368 107,878
Paid during the year (4,487) (5,597)
Balance as at 31 December 1,295,227 1,140,346

In accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard No. (19),
“Employee Benefits”, the management of Palestine Office Technology Company - OFFTEC
has estimated the current value of its liabilities as at 31 December 2022 using the projected
unit credit method related to the end of service indemnity payable to employees under the
applicable Palestinian Labour Law. The expected liability at the date of leaving the service
has been discounted to its net current value using a discount rate of 5.15%. Under this
method, an assessment is made of the expected service life of the employees with the
Group and the expected salary at the date of leaving the service. Management has
assumed average premium /upgrade costs of 4%. The current value of the liability as at 31
December 2022 is not materially different from the provision calculated in the above table in
accordance with the Palestinian Labour Law No. 7 of 2000.

The following table shows the impact of a possible change in the significant assumptions on
the provision for end of service indemnity, with all other affecting variables held constant.

Decrease in
assumption

Change Increase in
percentage assumption

Decrease in provision Increase in provision

Discount rate 0.5% by 5.65% by 4.65%
Increase in provision Decrease in provision

Average salary premium 0.5% by 4.60% by 3.60%

(18) BANK OVERDRAFTS

2023 2022

JD JD
Invest Bank (a) 66,133 54,875
Arab Bank (b) 132,559 92,579
Bank Al Etihad (c) 125,791 345,044
Housing Bank for Trade and Finance (d) 1,184,543 1,137,903
Arab Jordan Investment Bank (e) 319,381 200,546
Arab Banking Corporation (f) 809,549 704,791
Bank of Palestine - Palestine (g) 451,207 555,211
Al Quds Bank - Palestine (h) - 313,612
Jordan Kawait Bank Master card (ceiling JD 15,000) 14,489 -
3,103,652 3,404,561
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There are no debt covenants associated with these borrowings. The bank facilities of the
Group and its subsidiaries are as follows:

a. Bank facilities granted by Invest Bank

During 2016, The Jordan Educational Library Company signed a facility agreement with
Invest Bank, whereby the Company was granted an overdraft facility with a ceiling of JD
250,000 at an interest rate of 11.75% (2022: 10.75%) and a fixed commission of 1%
annually on the basis of the daily utilized balance. The ceiling of the overdraft facility is
renewed annually, and it is guaranteed by the guarantee of the Holding Company. The
balance of the utilized overdraft facility amounted to JD 66,133 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: JD 54,875).

b. Bank facilities granted by Arab Bank

During 2001, The Jordan Educational Library Company signed a facility agreement with
Arab Bank, whereby the Company was granted an overdraft facility with a ceiling of JD
400,000 and letter of guarantees of JD 1,000,000 at an interest rate of 11.75% (2022:
11.5%) and a fixed commission of 1% annually on the basis of the daily utilized balance. The
ceiling of the overdraft facility is renewed annually, and it is guaranteed by the guarantee of
the Holding Company. The balance of the utilized overdraft facility amounted to JD 132,559
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 92,579).

C. Bank facilities granted by Bank al Etihad

During 2006, The Jordan Educational Library Company signed a facility agreement with
Bank al Etihad, whereby the Company was granted an overdraft facility with a ceiling of JD
500,000 at an interest rate of 11.25% (2022: 11.75%) and a fixed commission of 1%
annually on the basis of the daily utilized balance. The ceiling of the overdraft facility is
renewed annually, and it is guaranteed by the guarantee of the Holding Company. The
balance of the utilized overdraft facility amounted to JD 40,000 as at 31 December 2023.
(2022: JD 220,331)

During 2010, The Jordan Educational Library Company signed a facility agreement with
Bank al Etihad, whereby the Company was granted facilities renewable annually to finance
purchases with a ceiling of JD 200,000 at an interest rate of 11.25% (2022: 11.75%) and a
fixed commission of 1% annually on the basis of the daily utilized balance, and it is
guaranteed by the guarantee of the Holding Company. The utilized balance amounted to JD
47,791 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 79,580).

During 2019, Axis of the World Trading Company signed a facility agreement with Bank al
Etihad, whereby the Company was granted facilities renewable annually to finance
purchases with a ceiling of JD 300,000 at an interest rate of 11.25% (2022: 11.75%) and a
fixed commission of 1% annually on the basis of the daily utilized balance, and it is
guaranteed by the guarantee of the Holding Company. The utilized balance amounted to JD
38,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 45,133).

d. Arab Banking Corporation

On 25 January 2021, The Jordan Scientific Library Company signed a facility agreement
with Arab Banking Corporation Bank, whereby the Company was granted a loan to finance
purchases with a ceiling of JD 1,000,000 at an interest rate and commission of 11.5% (2022:
10.5%) calculated on the basis of the daily utilized balance, and it is guaranteed by the
guarantee of the Holding Company. Durinmg 2023, this facility was transferred in the name
of OFFTEC for Office and Banking System. The loan balance amounted to JD 809,549 as at
31 December 2023 (2022: JD 704,791).
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e. Bank facilities granted by the Housing Bank for Trade and Finance

On 29 December 2020, OFFTEC Holding Group Company - Dubai Branch signed an
appendix of a facility agreement with the Housing Bank for Trade and Finance, whereby the
Company was granted facilities renewable annually to finance purchases with a ceiling of
USD 400,000 at fixed interest and commission rates (3 month LIBOR plus a margin of 2.5%
with a minimum of 5%) annually on the basis of the daily utilized balance, which is
guaranteed by the guarantee of the Holding Company. The utilized balance amounted to
USD 360,346 (equivalent to JD 255,486) as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 169,639).

In July 2017, the UK Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) announced, which regulates the
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), announced that this interest standard would be
discontinued by 2023. During 2024, the company has signed a new facility agreement
whereby the intrest and commission rates adjusted to (6 month SOFR plus a margin of 2.5%
with @ minimum of 5%).

During 2004, The Jordan Educational Library Company signed a facility agreement with
the Housing Bank for Trade and Finance, whereby the Company was granted facilities
renewable annually to finance purchases with a ceiling of JD 800,000 which was then
increased to JD 1,800,000 and overdraft with a ceiling of JD 300,000 in addition to letter of
guarantees with a ceiling of JD 1,500,000 at an interest rate of 11.5% (2022: 12.5%) and a
fixed commission of 1% annually on the basis of the daily utilized balance, and it is
guaranteed by the guarantee of the Holding Company. The utilized balance amounted to JD
929,057 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 1,137,903).

f. Bank facilities granted by Arab Jordan Investment Bank

During 1 August 2020, OFFTEC Holding Company signed an appendix of a facility
agreement with Arab Jordan Investment Bank, whereby the Company renewed an overdraft
facility with a ceiling of JD 200,000 at a fixed interest rate and commission of 12.25% (2022:
12.25%) annually on the basis of the daily utilized balance. The ceiling of the overdraft
facility is renewed annually. The balance of the utilized overdraft facility amounted to JD
167,431 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 753).

On 1 August 2020, Al Wasla Finance Company signed a facility agreement with Arab
Jordan Investment Bank, whereby the Company renewed an overdraft facility contract with a
ceiling of JD 100,000 at an interest rate and commission of 9.25% fixed annually, which was
increased during the year 2023 to become 12.25% (2022: 9.25) calculated on the basis of
the daily exploited balance. The ceiling of the overdraft facility is renewed annually, and it is
guaranteed by the guarantee of Offtec Holding Company. The balance of the utilized
overdraft facility amounted to JD 101,101 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 94,528).

On 29 August 2021, OFFTEC Holding Company signed a contract for loan facilities from
the Arab Jordan Investment Bank, whereby the Company obtained a loan of JD 175,000 at a
fixed interest rate of 8.5% annually, calculated on the calculated and unpaid balance of the
loan monthly, to be settled by equal monthly instalments, which is guaranteed by the
guarantee of OFFTEC Holding Company. The loan balance amounted to JD 50,849 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: JD 105,265).
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g. Facilities granted by Bank of Palestine - Palestine

During 2020, Palestine Company for Office Technology signed a facility agreement with
Bank of Palestine, whereby the Company was granted facilities renewable annually to
finance purchases with a ceiling of USD 500,000 and was increased during the year 2023 to
become USD 1,800,00 at an interest rate and a fixed commission of 6.25% annually
calculated on the basis of the daily utilized balance, and it is guaranteed by the guarantee of
the OFFTEC Holding Company. The utilized balance amounted to USD 636,399 (equivalent
to JD 451,207) as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 555,211).

h. Facilities granted by Al Quds Bank - Palestine

On 27 March 2022, Palestine Company for Office Technology signed a facility agreement
with Al Quds Bank, whereby the Company was granted facilities renewable annually to
finance purchases with a ceiling of USD 500,000 with libor interest each month + 5.2%
annually, with a maximum of 10% annually, calculated on the basis of the daily used
balance. The utilized balance was zero as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 313,612).

(19) BANK BORROWINGS

Borrowings are classified according to their maturity dates into short and long-term
borrowings, as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Short term loans 8,734,316 7,134,760
Long-term loans 1,094,917 1,024,666
9,829,233 8,159,426
2023 2022
JD JD
Bank al Etihad loan 4,281,906 2,983,665
Arab Jordan Investment Bank loan 2,356,261 2,181,188
Jordan Kuwait Bank loan 2,193,981 1,999,484
Capital Bank of Jordan 997,085 995,089
9,829,233 8,159,426

Bank al Etihad loan

During 2020, Al Wasla Finance Company signed a revolving loan facility agreement from
Bank al Etihad for the purposes of financing investment contracts, whereby the Company
renewed the facility contract with a ceiling of JD 4,000,000 at an interest rate and fixed
commission of 8.25% annually and was increased during the year 2022 to become 13%,
calculated and paid monthly, the loan is repaid in different instalments ranging between 12
and 36 instalments according to the investment in the finance contracts, which is guaranteed
by the guarantee of OFFTEC Holding Company. The balance of the utilized loan amounted
to JD 4,281,906 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 2,983,665).
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Arab Jordan Investment Bank loan

During 2020, Al Wasla Finance Company signed a revolving loan facility agreement from
Arab Jordan Investment Bank for the purposes of financing investment contracts, whereby
the Company renewed the facility contract with a ceiling of JD 2,220,000 at an interest rate
and fixed commission of 12.25% annually, calculated and paid monthly, the loan is repaid in
different instalments ranging between 12 and 36 instalments according to the investment in
the finance contracts, which is guaranteed by the guarantee of OFFTEC Holding Company.
The balance of the utilized loan amounted to JD 2,193,758 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
JD 2,181,188).

On October 2023, Oftec Holding Company signed a credit facilities contract for the
purposes of developing the financing system at Al Wasla Finance Company (a subsidiary) to
complete the Central Bank’s requirements from the Arab Jordanian Investment Bank, under
which the Company obtained facilities with a ceiling of JD 500,000 at a fixed interest rate of
12.5%. It is calculated annually on the withdrawn and unpaid balance of the loan on a
monthly basis and is repaid in equal quarterly installments starting from June 30, 2024. It is
guaranteed by Oftec Holding Company. The loan balance amounted to JD 162,503 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: nothing).

Jordan Kuwait Bank loan

On 23 May 2021, Al Wasla Finance Company signed a revolving loan facility agreement
from Jordan Kuwait Bank, whereby the Company was granted under the facility contract a
ceiling of JD 2,000,000 at an interest rate and a fixed commission of 8.25% annually
calculated and paid monthly and was increased during the year 2022 to become 13.5%. The
loan is repaid in different instalments, ranging from one to 36 instalments, according to the
investment in financing contracts. This is guaranteed by the guarantee of OFFTEC Holding
Company. The balance of the loan amounted to JD 2,193,981 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: JD 1,999,484).

Capital Bank of Jordan

On 19 September 2022, Al Wasla Finance Company signed a revolving loan facility
agreement from Capital Bank of Jordan, whereby the Company was granted under the
facility contract a ceiling of JD 1,000,000 at an interest rate and a fixed commission of
12.25% annually calculated and paid monthly. The loan is repaid in different instalments
ranging from 12 to 18 instalments, according to the investment in financing contracts. This is
guaranteed by the guarantee of OFFTEC Holding Company. The balance of the loan
amounted to JD 997,085 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: JD 995,088).

Net Borrowing reconciliation

The following is an analysis of net borrowing and the movement in net borrowing during the
year as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Cash and cash equivalents (3,034,187) (1,539,503)
Short term borrowing 11,837,968 10,539,321
Long term borrowing 1,094,917 1,024,666
Net Borrowing 9,898,698 10,024,484
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Bank borrowings

Cash and
cash Shortterm  Long term
equivalents _borrowing  borrowing Total
JD JD JD JD
2023
Net Borrowing as at 1 January (1,539,503) 10,539,321 1,024,666 10,024,484
Net cashflow (1,494,684) 1,298,647 70,251 (125,786)

Net Borrowing as at 31 December  (3,034,187) 11,837,968 1,094,917 9,898,698

Bank borrowings

Cash and
cash Shortterm  Long term
equivalents  borrowing borrowing Total
JD JD JD JD
2022
Net Borrowing as at 1 January (3,001,629) 7,032,526 2,145,220 6,176,117
Net cashflow 1,462,126 3,506,795 (1,120,554) 3,848,367

Net Borrowing as at 31 December (1,539,503) 10,539,321 1,024,666 10,024,484

(20) TRADE PAYABLES

2023 2022

JD JD
Trade payables 3,985,450 3,564,489
Post-dated cheques 51,968 199,177
4,037,418 3,763,666

The credit period on purchases of goods and services is approximately 45 days
(2022: 30 days). No interest is charged on trade payables that are past due. The Group
applies financial risk management policies to ensure that all amounts due are paid within the
time frame of the credit period.

(21) OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022

JD JD
Payments received from customers 3,920,977 2,692,592
Accrued expenses 1,809,519 887,704
Employees' payables 535,775 388,633
Various provisions 327,569 309,359
Deferred revenue 306,413 253,070
Shareholders' deposits* 258,896 255,161
Other 43,614 120,822

7,202,763 4,907,341
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* Movement of the shareholders' deposits is as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Balance as at the beginning of the year 255,161 187,486
Accrued dividends (Note 15) 1,219,750 -
Return of the surplus in the Company’s capital to the
shareholders (Note 15) - 1,013,740
Payment of dividends/capital reduction (1,216,015) (946,065)
Balance as at the end of the year 258,896 255,161
(22)  INCOME AND SALES TAX
a. The movement in the income tax provision is as follows:
2023 2022
JD JD
Balance as at 1 January 568,654 281,137
Income tax expense 908,406 724,169
Income tax paid (710,673) (436,652)
Balance as at 31 December 766,387 568,654
The income tax expense shown in the consolidated statement of income represents the
following:
2023 2022
JD JD
Income tax expense for prior years * 44,418 13,912
Income tax expense for the year ** 863,988 710,257
Deferred tax assets on provisions (Note 22-B) (56,437) (17,250)
851,969 706,919
* The prior years income tax expense shown in the consolidated statement of income was as
follows:
Reviewed
Company Name Years 2023 2022
JD JD
Palestine Office Technology Company - OFFTEC 2020 & 2021 22,285 -
OFFTEC International Investment Company 2021 22,133 -
OFFTEC Company for Office and Banking Systems 2017 - 8,733
OFFTEC Commercial Investment and Electronic - 2,979
Devices Trading Co. Ltd. 2021
Jordan Scientific Library Company 2020 - 2,200
44,418 13,912
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Reconciliation from accounting income to taxable income is summarised as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD
Accounting profit (2,575,414) 2,524,877
Add: non-taxable expenses 8,318,953 1,513,263
Less: non-taxable revenue (1,159,187) (553,496)
Taxable income 4,584,352 3,484,644
Income tax due 863,988 710,257
Effective tax rate 19% 20%

*

The income tax payable for the Group’s business results for the year ended 31
Decembers 2023 and 31 December 2022 was calculated according to the taxable
income, after making an adjustment to the accounting profit in respect of non-taxable
expenses and non-taxable revenues, taking into consideration the different tax rates
according to the Company's activity and the country in which it is registered, as the
calculated tax rates ranged between 11% - 28%. In the opinion of the management
and the tax consultant, the provisions booked are sufficient for any tax liability as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

World Axis Trading Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and Sales Tax
Department until 31 December 2022.

Cherry Pot Company for Electronic Commerce Company obtained a final clearance from
the Income and Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2022. As for the year 2020, the
income tax return was submitted and the Income and Sales Tax Department has not
reviewed the records up to date.

The Jordan Scientific Library Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and
Sales Tax Departmentuntil 31 December 2020. As for the year 2021and 2022, the income
tax returns were submitted and the Income and Sales Tax Department has not reviewed the
records up to date.

The OFFTEC Holding Group Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and
SalesTax Department until 31 December 2022.

The OFFTEC Company for Office and Banking Systems obtained a final clearance from
the Income and Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2019. As for the year 2020, the
Income and Sales Tax Department reviewed the company’s records and estimated an
amount of JD 44,802, the Company objected on the estimated tax difference and the file is
now pending before the Tax Court of First Instance. In the opinion of the management and
the company's tax advisor, the additional estimated tax is not accurate. As for the years
2021 and 2022, income tax returns have been submitted, and the Income and Sales Tax
Department has not reviewed the company’s records until the date of preparing these
financial statements.

Al Wasla Finance Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and Sales Tax
Department until 31 December 2020. As for the year 2021, the income tax return was
submitted and the Income and Sales Tax Department has not reviewed the records up to
date.

Trust International for Marketing and E-commerce Company obtained a final clearance
from the Income and Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2022 except 2021. As for the
year 2021, the income tax return was submitted and the Income and Sales Tax Department
has not reviewed the records up to date.
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The Offtec International Investment Company obtained a final clearance from the Income
and Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2022.

Palestine Office Technology Company-OFFTEC Company obtained a final clearance
from the Income and Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2021. As for the year 2022,
the income tax return was submitted and has not been reviewed up to date.

OFFTEC Commercial Investment and Electronic Devices Trading Co. Ltd. obtained a
final clearance from the Income and Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2022.

The OFFTEC Iraq for Investment Company obtained a final clearance from the Income
and Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2022, except for the year 2018, where the
income tax return was submitted and the Income and Sales Tax Department has not
reviewed the records up to date.

Space Technology General Trading Company obtained a final clearance from the Income
and Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2022.

Offtec Engineering Services Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and
Sales Tax Department until 31 December 2021.

b. The movement on deferred tax assets is as follows:
2023 2022
JD JD
Balance as at 1 January 230,105 212,855
Additions 57,110 18,089
Releases (674) (840)
Balance as at 31 December 286,541 230,105
Details of deferred tax assets include the following:
2023
Balance at Balance at
beginning of the end of  Deferred
the year Released Additions the year taxes
JD JD JD JD JD
Included items
Provision for end of
service compensation 1,140,346 (4,487) 159,368 1,295,227 194,284
Provision for slow-
moving goods 89,058 - 26,950 116,008 17,401
Provision for expected
credit losses 304,629 - 194,412 499,041 74,856
Total 1,534,033 (4,487) 380,730 1,910,276 286,541
2022
Balance at Balance at
beginning of the end of  Deferred
the year Releases Additions the year taxes
JD JD JD JD JD

Included items
Provision for end of
service compensation 1,038,065 (5,597) 107,878 1,140,346 171,052
Provision for slow-
moving goods 76,342 - 12,716 89,058 13,359
Provision for expected
credit losses 304,629 - - 304,629 45,694
Total 1,419,036 (5,597) 120,594 1,534,033 230,105

Deferred tax assets were calculated using the applicable income tax rate according to the
Income Tax Law of Palestine.
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C. Sales Tax:

Sales tax returns for Offtec Holding Group's - Dubai branch were cleared until 31
December 2019. Regarding subsequent years, sales tax returns were filed as required by
law and on time. However, the tax department has not reviewed the company's records as at
the date of preparation of these financial statements.

Sales tax returns for World Axis Trading Company were cleared until October 31, 2022.

Sales tax returns for Cherry pot E-commerce Trading Company were cleared until 31
December 2019, according to the statute of limitations as they have exceeded the legal
period for retaining records and documents according to Article 38 of the Sales Tax Law.
Regarding subsequent years, sales tax returns were filed as required by law and on time.
However, the tax department has not reviewed the company's records as at the date of
preparation of these financial statements.

Sales tax returns for Jordan Educational company were cleared until 31 December 2019.
Regarding subsequent years, sales tax returns were filed as required by law and on time.
However, the tax department has not reviewed the company's records as at the date of
preparation of these financial statements.

Sales tax returns for Offtec for Office and Banking Systems Company were cleared until
October 31, 2021. Regarding the year 2022, sales tax returns were filed as required by law
and on time. However, the tax department has not reviewed the company's records as at the
date of preparation of these financial statements.

Sales tax returns for Wasla for Finance Company were cleared until 31 December 2019.
Regarding subsequent years, sales tax returns were filed as required by law and on time.
However, the tax department has not reviewed the company's records as at the date of
preparation of these financial statements.

Sales tax returns for International Trust for Marketing and E-commerce were cleared
until 31 December 2019. Regarding subsequent years, sales tax returns were filed as
required by law and on time. However, the tax department has not reviewed the company's
records as at the date of preparation of these financial statements.

Sales tax returns for Palestine Office Technology - Offtec were cleared until October 31,
2021. Regarding the year 2022, sales tax returns were filed as required by law and on time.
However, the tax department has not reviewed the company's records as at the date of
preparation of these financial statements.

Sales tax returns for Offtec Commercial Investment and Electronic Devices Trading
Limited were cleared until October 31, 2022.
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(23) CosT OF SALES

Inventory balance as at 1 January
Purchase during the year
Inventory balance as at 31 December (Note 10)

Operating expenses (23 -1)

(23 - 1) Operating expenses

Salaries, wages and other employee benefits
Transportation, travel and vehicles’ expenses
Maintenance supplies and spare parts
Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 5)
Insurance

Training

(24) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other employee benefits
Amortization of the assets of the right to use (Note 7)
Professional fees and consultation

Governmental licenses, fees and stamps

Selling, marketing and advertising expenses
Provision for end of service compensation (Note 17)
Stationary and printing

Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 5)
Board of Directors transportation expenses
Hospitality

Water and electricity

Post, telephone and internet

Audit fees

Other
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2023 2022
JD JD
7,454,489 5,252,796
18,403,108 19,781,926
(6,943,477) (7,454,489)
18,914,120 17,580,233
6,140,087 4,774,293
25,054,207 22,354,526
2023 2022
JD JD
4,916,985 3,787,129
479,640 365,957
314,315 217,747
284,832 226,056
114,201 134,137
30,114 43,267
6,140,087 4,774,293
2023 2022
JD JD
3,699,477 3,652,187
369,980 319,095
249,624 267,961
284,133 203,632
219,216 232,328
159,368 107,878
153,800 120,387
131,136 119,367
126,614 65,882
91,933 84,508
81,404 77,706
54,675 59,444
55,090 55,090
269,623 373,122
5,946,073 5,738,587
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(25) HYPERINFLATIONARY ECONOMIES

As shown in Basis of preparing consolidated financial statements Note (2.1), The Jordanian
dinar is the presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements, which is the
Group's functional currency. Some of the Group's subsidiaries operates in Sudan and its
functional currency is the Sudanese pound because it reflects the economic core of the
Company's underlying events and conditions.

The economy in Sudan has witnessed high inflation rates since 2018, and this falls under the
scope of International Accounting Standard 29 - Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies. It is noteworthy that the cumulative inflation rate for the three years until 31
December 2021 in Sudan exceeded 2,200%. In addition, the macroeconomic events that
occurred in Sudan during 2021 indicate that the qualitative factors mentioned in IAS 29 for
high inflationary economy apply to Sudan. Thus, the need arose to prove the effect of
inflation on the financial statements for the year ending on 31 December 2021 in accordance
with IAS 29. As for the year 2022 and 2023, the Group did not record the effect of inflation in
its consolidated financial statements in accordance with IAS 29, because the effect of
inflation was not material on the consolidated financial statements, as the Group has written
off the non-cash items (inventory and property and equipment) from the books of the
subsidiaries, which significantly affect the calculation of the effect of inflation on the financial
statements.

The Company used the local consumer price index published by the Sudanese Central
Bureau of Statistics.

The tables below show the development of these indicators in the past three years until
31 December 2023, according to official statistics:

31 December

2021 2022 2023
% % %
Price variation
Annually 318% 180% 102%
The three cumulative years 2,241% 2785% 797%
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(26) REVENUES

The Group derives its revenue by transferring control of the goods at a point in time through
the following key cash-generating units:

Revenue from
contracts with
customers

Revenue timing - at a
point in time

Revenue timing - over
time

Total

Revenue from
contracts with
customers

Revenue timing - at a
point in time

Revenue timing - over
time

Total

2023
Revenue Revenue
from sales of from sales
office and Revenue of lighting
Revenue bank from sales of  devices, Total (before
from equipment, software, IT, services eliminations
finance  services and services and and and
contracts accessories accessories accessories amendments)
JD JD JD JD JD
- 12,336,588 21,342,609 725,822 34,405,019
6,753,734 5,349,261 42,930 - 12,145,925
6,753,734 17,685,849 21,385,539 725,822 46,550,944
2022
Revenue Revenue
from sales of from sales
office and Revenue of lighting
Revenue bank from sales of  devices, Total (before
from equipment, software, IT, services eliminations
finance  services and services and and and
contracts accessories accessories accessories amendments)
JD JD JD JD JD
- 15,152,130 15,009,460 840,257 31,001,847
5,171,022 4,526,884 93,132 - 9,791,038
5,171,022 19,679,014 15,102,592 840,257 40,792,885
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(27)

SEGMENT CLASSIFICATION

Operating segments are components that engage in business activities that may generate
revenue or incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group's
chief operating decision maker and for which separate financial information is available. The
chief decision maker is the person or group of people who allocate the necessary resources
and evaluate the performance of the Group. The decision maker is identified as the
Nomination Committee made up of members of the Group’s Board of Directors.

(a)

(b)

(c)

The description of the products and services from which each segment derives
its revenue

The Group is organised on the basis of four main business segments:

Finance contracts

Sales of office and bank equipment, services and accessories
Sales of software, information technology, services and accessories
Sales of lighting devices, services and accessories

Factors used by management to determine the reportable segments

The Group segments are strategic business units that focus on different customers,
and are managed separately because each business unit requires different
marketing strategies and service levels.

The regular review of the Group's subsidiaries is delegated to the different
departments of each company. The decision maker obtains the financial statements
of the Group's subsidiaries and uses them to show the segments.

Management applies the key principle of IFRS 8 in determining which overlapping
financial information should form the basis of the operating segments and marketing
strategies.

Measurement of operating segments’ profits or losses, assets and liabilities
The decision maker reviews the financial information prepared based on the Group's
internal policies modified to meet internal reporting requirements. This financial
information differs in certain respects from IFRS:

(1) Income taxes are not allocated to segments.

(2) Non-recognition of the Group's liabilities.

The decision maker evaluates the performance of each segment based on adjusted
profit (before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization).
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Information on the profits or losses and assets of the reportable segment:

Total revenue

Less: cost of sales
Sectors profit
Depreciations

Capital expenditure:
Property and equipment
Total assets

Total liabilities

Total revenue

Less: cost of sales
Sectors profit
Depreciations

Capital expenditure:
Property and equipment
Total assets

Total liabilities

31 December 2023

Revenue from
sales of office and

Revenue from Revenue from

Revenue from  bank equipment, sales of software, sales of lighting Eliminations
finance services and IT, servicesand  devices, services and
contracts accessories accessories and accessories Total adjustments Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
6,753,734 17,685,849 21,385,539 725,822 46,550,944 (8,936,035) 37,614,909
(1,246,107) (14,676,034) (17,618,034) (450,067) (33,990,242) 8,936,035 (25,054,207)
5,507,627 3,009,815 3,767,505 275,755 12,560,702 - 12,560,702
85,978 146,947 177,686 5,357 415,968 - 415,968
291,765 268,992 325,262 306 886,325 - 886,325
15,295,464 12,112,699 14,646,546 265,946 42,320,655 - 42,320,655
14,118,946 5,779,867 6,988,957 122,367 27,010,137 - 27,010,137
31 December 2022
Revenue from
sales of office and Revenue from Revenue from
Revenue from  bank equipment, sales of software, sales of lighting Eliminations
finance services and IT, servicesand  devices, services and
contracts accessories accessories and accessories Total adjustments Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
5,171,022 19,679,014 15,102,592 840,257 40,792,885 (8,021,645) 32,771,240
(719,507) (16,485,199) (12,589,296) (582,169) (30,376,171) 8,021,645 (22,354,526)
4,451,515 3,193,815 2,513,296 258,088 10,416,714 - 10,416,714
72,602 150,819 116,336 5,666 345,423 - 345,423
93,593 163,731 125,655 347 383,326 - 383,326
11,794,555 17,398,592 13,352,490 328,445 42,874,082 - 42,874,082
11,014,559 6,547,165 5,024,592 254,559 22,840,875 - 22,840,875
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(e) Segment liabilities

Segment liabilities are measured in the same manner as in the financial statements. These
liabilities are allocated based on the segment operations.

The Group's borrowings and derivative financial instruments are not considered segment
liabilities, but are managed by the Group's management.

The business segment represents a group of assets and operations that jointly provide
products or services subject to risks and returns that are different from those related to other
business segments and that are measured according to the reports that are used by the
CEO and primary decision maker at the Group.

A geographical segment is associated with the provision of products or services in a
particular economic environment that is subject to risks and rewards different from those
related to segments operating in economic environments.

Distribution of revenues by geographical areas

The table below shows the distribution of the Group's sales by geographical areas as at
31 December 2023 and 2022:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Inside Outside Inside Outside
Jordan Jordan Total Jordan Jordan Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD

Revenue 23,947,903 13,667,006 37,614,909 19,653,715 13,117,525 32,771,240

(29) FINANCE COSTS

2023 2022
JD JD
Interest expense 1,801,373 1,241,536
Leases interest (Note 7) 85,704 91,796
Interest expense from discontinued operations (Note - (58)
30)
1,887,077 1,333,274

(29) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has, at the date of the consolidated interim statement of financial position,
contingent liabilities represented in unutilized credit ceiling balances granted to clients and
bank guarantees represented in bid entry guarantees, advances to customers, good
implementation and maintenance, arising from the Group’s ordinary course of business and
which are not expected to result in material obligations and consist of the following:

2023 2022
JD JD
Bank guarantees 7,755,923 8,190,451
Letters of credit 166,664 8,087
Non-utilised ceilings* 5,170,255 1,010,003
13,092,842 9,208,541

*

This item represents the unused credit ceiling balances granted to clients by Al Wasla
Finance Company.
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Legal cases:

There are lawsuits filed against the Group by third parties in the amount of JD 44,710, and
the Company's management has taken a provision of JD 24,710 to meet financial
obligations that may arise from these legal cases. In the opinion of the management and the
legal consultant, the provisions booked are sufficient to meet any legal obligation.

(30) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Based on the decision of the Group’s Board of Directors on 16 December 2021 to stop all
activities and works carried out by the Egyptian Company for Loyalty and Rewards Limited
Liability - Egypt, according to the Company’s Extraordinary General Assembly meeting held
on 1 February 2022, the Company was put under liquidation and a liquidator was appointed,
and in accordance with the requirements of Standard No. (5), the comparative figures were
represented in the statement of income so that the business results of the Egyptian
Company for Loyalty and Rewards Limited Liability were shown in the item of profit (loss)
from discontinued operations. This liquidation resulted in the exclusion of the non-controlling
interest in the Egyptian Loyalty and Rewards Company, amounting to JD 12,807.

The results of the Companies' business from discontinued operations are as follows:

2023 2022
JD JD

General and administrative expenses - (424)
Other income, net - 32,705
Operating profit - 32,281
Finance costs - (58)
Net profit for the year - 32,223
Profit for the year attributable to:
Shareholders - 30,611
Non-controlling interests - 1,612

- 32,223

69



OFFTEC HoLDING GROUP PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2023

(31) BAsIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2023 2022
JD JD

From the profit for the year
Earnings per share from the (loss) profit for the year (3,674,024) 1,704,198
Weighted average of the number of shares 34,850,000 38,389,625

Fils / JD Fils / JD
Basic and diluted earnings per share (0.105) 0.044
From continued operations for the year
Earnings per share from the (loss) profit for the year (3,674,024) 1,673,587
Weighted average of the number of shares 34,850,000 38,389,625

Fils / JD Fils / JD
Basic and diluted earnings per share (0.105) 0.043
From discontinued operations for the year
Earnings per share from the profit for the year - 30,611
Weighted average of the number of shares 34,850,000 38,389,625

Fils / JD Fils / JD
Basic and diluted earnings per share - 0.001

The basic earnings per share from the (loss) profit for the year equals the diluted earnings as
the Group did not issue any financial instruments that affect the basic earnings per share.

(31) RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are generally considered to be related if the parties are under joint control or
if one party has the ability to control the other or can exercise significant influence or joint
control over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. In considering each
potential relationship with related parties, attention is drawn to the substance of the
relationship, not just the legal form.

Related parties comprise directors and senior executive management of the Company and
other entities that are controlled by them or over which they exercise significant influence,
whether directly or indirectly.

Transactions with related parties represent transactions carried out with the executive
management of the Group. Prices and terms regarding these transactions are adopted by
the Group's management.

The following are the salaries and benefits of senior executive management:

2023 2022
JD JD
Salaries and bonuses 174,300 210,000
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